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Dear Mr. Arline:

On behalf of The Honorable George B. Gainer, Chairman of the Bay County Board of County
Commissioners, you ask the following question:

Under the provisions of Chapter 2005-343, Laws of Florida, may a person who has served two
four-year terms on the Board of Trustees of Bay Medical Center, separated by a one-year
absence, be reconfirmed to another four-year term?

In sum:

An individual who has served one four-year term, followed by a one-year absence, then served
another four-year term has not served two consecutive, full four-year terms which would render
him or her ineligible for reappointment to the board.

Chapter 2005-343, Laws of Florida, codifies all previously enacted special acts relating to the
Board of Trustees of Bay Medical Center (board) and provides a single comprehensive charter
for the independent special district which was previously created.[1] The charter provides that
the board shall consist of nine persons, each appointed to serve four-year terms.[2]

Relative to your question, the act states:

"A person who has served two full, consecutive terms as a member of the board of trustees shall
not be eligible for reconfirmation until the next regular appointment process occurring
approximately 2 years after that person’s termination of service."[3] (e.s.)

You state that recently a nominee was presented for consideration who has served one four-
year term as the county commission’s appointee, followed by a one-year absence, then
reappointed by the medical staff as its appointee to serve another four-year term. The member
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has now been nominated to serve another four-year term. Counsel for the special district has
opined that the nomination may go forward because the member has not served two full,
consecutive terms. The chairman of the county commission, however, is concerned that such a
construction of the special act weakens the term limit provisions, by allowing a member to serve
numerous terms by leaving the board between terms. This opinion is expressly limited to a
consideration of the application of Chapter 2005-343, Laws of Florida, under the specific facts
presented in your inquiry.

It is a generally established principle that the right to hold office is a valuable one which should
not be curtailed in the absence of plain provisions of law.[4] If ambiguity exists in construing
provisions limiting the right to hold office, those provisions should be construed in favor of
eligibility.[5]

The plain language of section 3(3) of Chapter 2005-343, Laws of Florida, however, states that a
person must serve two, full consecutive terms before becoming ineligible for consideration to fill
another term of office for a period of two years. It is a general rule of statutory construction that
in the absence of a statutory definition, the plain and ordinary meaning of words can be
ascertained if necessary by reference to a dictionary.[6] The term "consecutive" is defined as
"having no interval or break: continuous."[7] In the instant inquiry, the individual has served one
four-year term with a break of one year before serving a second term. Under such facts, it does
not appear that the individual has served two "consecutive" terms.

Accordingly, it is my opinion that an individual who has served one four-year term, followed by a
one-year absence, then served another four-year term has not served two consecutive, full four-
year terms which would render the individual ineligible for reappointment to the board.

Sincerely,

Pam Bondi
Attorney General

PB/tals
_____________________________________________________________________
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